
































































































































FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
SOTC Travel Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U63040MH2001PLC131691
324, Dr. D N Road, Fort, Mumbai- 400 001.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by SOTC Travel Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”).
The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We would like to state that due to COVID-19 pandemic, we have not physically verified the records of
the Company for the purpose of secretarial audit and have instead placed our reliance solely on the
contents of electronically signed / scanned copies of the records, documents, papers, information,
confirmation, etc; provided to us over e-mail by the Company, its officers and authorized
representatives.

Based on our limited verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns
filed with applicable regulatory authority(ies) and other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
financial year ended on March 31, 2021 (‘Audit Period’), complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to reporting made hereinafter:

We herewith report that maintenance of proper and updated Books, Papers, Minutes Books, filing of
Forms and Returns with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining other records is
responsibility of management and of the Company. Our responsibility is to verify the content of the
documents produced before us, make objective evaluation of the content in respect of compliance
and report thereon. We have examined on test check basis, the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms
and Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and produced before us for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021, as per the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013, (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder, to the extent
applicable to the Company;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder with
respect to Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings, to the extent the same was applicable to the Company;



(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’):

(@  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period);

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(¢)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period) and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period).

(vi)  We relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers in respect of systems
and mechanism formed / followed by the Company for the compliance of the following laws
applicable specifically to the Company:

1. The Passports Act, 1967 and applicable Rules thereto.
2. IATA Guidelines for Agents.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013; and

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period).

Based on the aforesaid information provided by the Company, we report that during the financial year
under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of the above mentioned Act/s, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. and we have no material observation or instances of non
compliance in respect of the same subject to the following observation:

1. The Company is under process of filling of Form CFSS with Registrar of Companies,
Maharashtra, Mumbai, Application for issue of immunity certificate for forms/ returns filed by
the Company under the Companies Fresh Start Scheme (CFSS), 2020.

We further report that, as informed by the management, below instances of fraud by certain
employees of the Company:

- personal tickets were booked on client account, amount recovered;

We further report that:



The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors about scheduled Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a reasonable system exists for Board
Members for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Based on the representation made by the Company and its Officer, we herewith report that majority
decision is carried through and proper system is in place which facilitates / ensure to capture and
record, the dissenting member's views, if any, as part of the Minutes.

Based on the representation made by the Company and its Officers explaining to us in respect of
internal systems and mechanisms established by the Company which ensures compliances of Acts,
Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company, we report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period:

a. The members have passed a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013, for borrowing of monies, which may exceed the aggregate of paid up share capital of the
Company, securities premium and its free reserves, provided that, apart from the said aggregate
of the paid-up share capital of the Company, Securities Premium and its free reserves, the total

amount upto which money(ies) may be borrowed shall not exceed the sum of * 200 crore at any
given point of time.

b. The members have passed a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013, for creation of security/ mortgage/ pledge/ hypothecation/ charge or encumbrance on all
the immovable and movable properties and assets of the Company.

For Keyul M. Dedhia & Associates
Company Secretaries
Unique ICSI Code Number: S2009MH120800

Sd/-

Keyul M. Dedhia

Proprietor

FCS No: 7756 COP No: 8618
UDIN: FO07756C000260437

Peer Review Certificate No.: 876/2020

May 07, 2021, Mumbai.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as '"ANNEXURE A" and
forms an integral part of this report.



To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members,

SOTC Travel Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U63040MH2001PLC131691
324, Dr. D N Road, Fort, Mumbai- 400 001.

Sub: Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test-check basis (by verifying records as was made available to us) to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we
follow, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company and we have relied on Statutory Auditors’ independent assessment
on the same.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of process followed by Company to ensure adequate Compliance on test-check basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Keyul M. Dedhia & Associates
Company Secretaries
Unique ICSI Code Number: S2009MH120800

Sd/-

Keyul M. Dedhia

Proprietor

FCS No: 7756 COP No: 8618
UDIN: FO07756C000260437

Peer Review Certificate No.: 876/2020

May 07, 2021, Mumbai.









BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Telephone: +91 22 6257 1000
Nesce IT Park 4, Nesco Center, Fax: +91 22 6257 1010

Western Express Highway,
Goregaon {East), Mumbai - 400 063

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
SOTC Travel Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SOTC Travel Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion on the [inaikial statcments.

to Note 1C of the financial statements, the possible effect in uncertainties relating to

fe-dfa At e
é&!‘»ﬁ%“@&q on the Company’s financial performance as assessed by the management. Our opinion
is npt:modifiedin respect of this matter.
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BSR & Co. LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s board report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Board report is expected to be made available to

us after the date of the auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
when it becomes available and in doing so consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

s B rial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
,Co@ o onable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
@7 idrfatcor with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

"“"::;fféﬁ?:'ﬂ;h o rror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably

mstetz‘@?'““- dt influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemnents.
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BSR & Co.LLP
Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Confinued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concer.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In Internal
control that we identify during our audit.

ide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ents tegarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

. . Caninf :
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BSR & Co. LLP

Independent Aaditors’ Report (Continued)

SOTC Travel Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a staternent on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company s0
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
rrotection Fund by the Company;

& Co.
(o3 {
QPGJ sl ‘ i ﬁ\losures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
cenrat Wd. 0k notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been

. . 4 . . . .
. se‘[‘:zi‘;riz':?nad in :‘;hese financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31
‘ lcﬁlegaon 'Bé{édlr 2021.
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BSR & Co.LLP
Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

SOTC Travel Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)
(B) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(1 6)
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022

F. M-

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner

Mumbai Membership No.042070
14 May 2021 UDIN No.: 21042070AAAABZ1954



BSR & Co.LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, we report that:

0]

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified by the management
according to a phased manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this
programme, a portion of the property, plant and equipment have been physically verified
by the management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no immovable properties held by the
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(“c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a service company and thus, it does not hold any physical inventory. Thus
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships, or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’). Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to investments made
and loan given. The Company has not provided any guarantees or securities to parties covered
under Section 185 or 186 of the Act therefore the relevant provisions of Section 185 and 136 of the

Act are not applicable.

In our opinion, and according tn the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from the public as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As informed to us by the management, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance
of cost records under section 148 of the Act for any of the goods sold and services rendered by the

Company.

ording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
tion of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
acc respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees” State
Insurance:\Income-tax, Professional tax, Goods and Services tax, Cess and other material
statuto rhjes, as applicable, have been generally regularly deposited during the year by
the' Company with the appropriate authorities though there has been some delay in few
#ses/in réspect of Income-Tax, Professional Tax and Labour Welfare Fund.




BSR & Co.LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services
tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period
of more than six months ftom the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Provident
fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Service tax and Goods and Services tax as
at 31 March 2021, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute other than those mentioned below:

Nature of Statute Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where
Dues Demanded deposited which the dispute is
under amount pending
Disputes relates
The Finance Act, | Service tax 2006-2015 CESTAT
1954 227,772,514 17,082,938
The Finance Act, | Service tax 81,11,575 6,08.368 | 2008-2013 CESTAT
1994
The Finance Act, | Service tax 64,06,240 480,468 | 2006-2010 CESTAT
1994
The Finance Act, | Service tax 7,03,04,341 52,72,825 | 2006-2009 CESTAT
1994
The Finance Act, | Service tax 1,27.41,876 9,55,640 | 2006-2012 CESTAT
1994
The Finance Act, | Service tax 20152016 CESTAT
1994 6,0559,936 4544995
The Finance Act, | Service tax 2,99,37,382 - | 2009-2011 Commissioner of
1994 Service Tax
The Finance Act, | Service tax 84,45,459 - | 2011-2015 Assistant
1994 Commissioner
Service Tax
The Finance Act, | Service tax 4,36,31,401 - | 2016-2018 Commissioner of
1994 Service Tax

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans to banks and borrowings to its banks and financial institutions.
The Company did not have any loans or borrowings from government or dues to debenture holders

during the year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, the Company has

utilized the money raised by way of term loans for the purpose for which they were raised. The

smpany did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
3 ents).

g Cot
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%).:co ceniceo ding to the information and explanations given to us, there no material fraud by the Company
et B0 GE B heCompany by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
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BSR & Co.LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 ofthe Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W 100022

a..l/u‘
2

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Partner

Mumbai Membership No.042070
14 May 2021 UDIN No.: 21042070AAAABZ1954



BSR & Co. LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SOTC Travel
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intenal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter

referred to as “the Act”™).
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of

i cial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
suchdnte ancial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evalvating
the rdesigh operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

éleftedde n on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
fthefin  ial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



BSR&Co. LLP

SOTC Travel Limited
Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

B . mrpti=

Bhavesh Dhupelia

FPartner
Mumbai Membership No.042070
14 May 2021 UDIN No.: 21042070AAAABZ1954
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SOTC Travel Limited

Balance Sheet
asaf 3F March 203
{All 2mouts in R3 Lakdss, waless otherwise stated)

Naee Asat As a1
31 March 2021 31 Moarch 2826
L ASSETS
(E) Noo-curreml assats
(a) Property, plaot mad e pmcnt 2 13533 Hiaz
(b} Rigin of use assers 27 1,028.93 119292
(c) Goodwitl 22 5850 268.50
{d} Other fatangible avsets 2.3 “an 6766
(e} Financial ayyets
() kivestments 3 554923 384918
(ii) Loms. 4 42692 La116
{ifi) Orber Ginancial asycts 3 18014 171 .56
(f} Defesred tax 2xses (met) & +695.53 5,994 96
{g) lcome tax 215e1s (mct) 7 1,637.16 4,108 39
Total mos-currest asseis 17,341,890 20,005.55
(2) Corvest apets
{a) Finzncial aspess
{i} Favestments 5 - 4,108 35
(1) Trade reccivables 2 1,179.21 5,662 54
G5} Cath and cash equivalenus ia 397 261785
{iv) Bank tafmors other than cxsh and cash equivalents i “$.39 4330
(v] Loans i2 L0842y 164198
{vi) Otler Bisgncial aceets 13 41817 2,13054
{b) Other corrent 2ssets X 311500 5,646 46
Totsl corrent sysets 14627.92 2390102
TOTAL ASSETS F1.968.03 -lli”éj7
IL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Equity
{a) Fxpaly share cxpinal Is i.00 100
(b} Other Equrity is 4,207.21 9.082.62
Total Equity FETTEY 9,083,672
{2) Neo-current Hahifities
(a} Odacr financial liabikites 7 $IL13 2,74t 93
{b) Provisions iz 37161 359.61
Total Nom-curvews Sabilities. L1975 310154
() Correns liabilities
{2} Financial [eadsilitics
{8) Bosrowings i 24078 2467326
(i) Trade payables
Total outstanding does of Micro aod Small exterprises 20 LE) -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micrs aod Sarall emterprises 20 12,9215 1405807
(i) Orher financial lisbifities n 51406 1,267 14
(b} Prenisions 22 24203 504 .41
{c) Oebser crent labifines 23 10,157.66 1261553
Tota! Carrent Liabilities 26.565.08 kiR =TT
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3LMLas 41.906.57
Significant sccousting policies 15 ——— e ————————
Notes w the finmciyl statements -4

The aotes referred wo above form an integral pant of the financial statements
As per our repot of even date arached

For and oa bebalf of the Board of Dirvcters of
SOTC Travd Limised

:ussmmmotru:mm]
M U‘ \
<D WAL p
Madiavan Meten Vigkal Sari

i Fewarda Wt \;X
s

Farrtmkh Kofah

Civief Frnancial Offsocr Campeasy
Muombai [CS No- AST964]
Teh May 2021



SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the pear exded 31 March 2031

(Al amcent w Rs Lakdbs, uedess atherase stated)

(3} Revewae

(2} Revenee from operztions
{h) Ocher encorme

Totad income

2) Expenzes

{a) Cost of xraces

{b) Employee benefits expense
(e} Finanes: costs

{d) Dey and

() Ocher expemses

Total expesses

(3) Loss before tas

(4) Taz expense;

{2) Carrent tax

(b} Defesred tax credit

(5) Lagss after taz

(6) Other comprebensive (Lass)l, (OCTy

Itemy that will wat be reciacrified to profit er (fass)

1) Remeastmements of defomed benednn (lizbility) / rivct

{i7} Encom: tx cxpesse an remeasurements. of defimed benefit lisbifity Xascet)

Other compredaensive {Lexs)income (uet of income tax) [G)

() Tetal comprrhonsive Lass for the yeir

(%) Earaings per Equity thare (Face valoe of Rs. 19 cach)
6) Basic { Rs)

Significars accomumg polroes

Notes so the fmznctal stztements

The potes reficrred wo above fonm an exegral part of the fmancral statements
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co LLP
Chawtered Accountants
Fiem's Regiceration Mo 10§248WAV-100022

5. H%&

Partaer

Membersiug No 042070
Mumbxn

1dth 3lee- 2021

Nate

24

B~4R

1B
-0

For the year ended For the year ended
3 hiarch 2021 31 Manch 3620

43857% 1795505

§52.62 459,19

504931 L15.444 24

2ESSSE NISHP

42138 887438

55116 §94.12

L6 1.063.41

4133761 947608

JZ3HLS 119,862 43
{7.794.03) (1.518.24)
(2.720.£5) €531.03)
SS.GT-I.I Z! sgzll I

259 4839
[r.1 )1 {1691}

39.59 3143

S

—(SOT (5573
{S0,741.65) @37211)

For aad om beialf of the Board of Directors of

IR
Q/Xauw -

Fc_w\wW\ K»LJ\.,

Farromih Kolak

Cloef Financial Officer
Momba

Tih May 2021

SOTC Travel Limited

PLCL31691]

Vishat Sari
i D
[DIN 06413771)

&
i Palod

Contpenty Sexresary
{CS No: A5T964}



SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amount in Rs Lakhs, unless ctherwise stated)

Cash flow from operafing activities
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on Right of use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Gain)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
(Gain)Loss on Lease liability
Exchange gain
Share-based paynient expense
Unclaimed credit balances no longer required, written back
Bad debts and advances written ofF
Provision for doubtful debts, advances and deposits (net)
Profit on redemption of tmits of mutual funds
Interest income - others
Interest income on Inter-Corporate Deposits
Interest income on fixed deposits and investments
Interest on 1ax refands
Finance costs

Working capital adjustmenss
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease in loans and advances

(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities and current liabilities

Decrease in provisions

Income tax refund / (paid), net
Net cash flows (used) in/generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitics

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plamt and cquipment & intangible
Interest received

Sale{Purchase} of units of mutual funds, net

Repayment of loan

Loan given

Redemption of Fixed deposits during the year (net)

Net cash flows generated from /(used) in investing activities

Cash flows from {inancing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Payment of Lease liabilities
Interest aid
&no in financing activities
® ¢
(Yo se in _and cash equivalents
a.ih equ alents at the beginning of the year
%E r‘ n?g, o eé;alili lents at the end of the year
Westagl Expiess Highw
GPalgaon {East),
Mupfai - 400 063

*

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(71,794.83) (1,41824)
152.01 190.58
679.37 798.68

53.58 74.55
(1.48) (3.98)
(141.6T) -
(99.51) -
15927 293.37
(90.46) (1,506.81)
266.49 841.40
(32.37) (83.99}
(1.83) (159.89)
(19.58) (16.13)
(190,07 (128.06)
(103.79) (47.50)
(334.16) -
55216 694.12

(6,946.87) (471,90

424921 3,943.03

6,748.65 9,137.76

(3,388.25) (12,730.22)

17.20 (218.06)
679.94 (339.39)

2,805.38 (1,143.75}

3,485.32 (1,483.14)
(98.59) (184.43)
(54.15) (8337

3.36 417
19326 190.45

4,110.18 1,202.62

4,15039 550.39

(8,243.60) -
(12.66) 22,60
48.69 1.702.43
150.00 _

(900.00) (1,800.00)
(649.82) (673,85}
{552.16) {694.12)

{1,951,98) (3.167.97)

1,582.03 (2,948.68)
(55.40) 289328

1,526.63 (55.40)




SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of cash flows (Continued)
Jar she yeor exdod 31 March 2028

{All anourd in Rx Lakbs, wiess otherwrse stated)

For the year ended For the yesxr ended
3 March 2021 31 March X020
Amount Amount
Recoacilintion of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Batance Sheet
Cash aned Bank: Ratawes s per Babance Shect 1,516.63 {55.40)
Cash and Cash exprivalents as restated a5 at the year end 152463 {55.40)
Note:
Conponents of cash and cash equavalents consasts of
Cash on hand 084 6i.55
Balance with Banks
Cravem Acconmt 3,7163.13 2355630
Less: Bank Overdraft Q.35734) (2.673.25)
}.526.43 {53.40)
QOpening Term Lowm fiom Bank 900.00 2.700.00
Erooceds fiom batremngs 150.00 -
Repayments of borrowings {900.00) (1.B00.00)
Closing Term Loaa from Bank 150.00 900,00
e ————
Notes:
l.mmmﬁﬁhmmmmthsmmummw (IND AS) 7 - “Statement of cash
flow™.
MNote
Sipgmificant accounting policics B
Notes to the inancial sternents 2-g
The: notes refered to above form an integrad part of the financial statements
As per gur neport of even date attached
For BSR& Ca.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clurtered Accountants SOTC Travel Limited

Finn's Regisration No: [0F248W/W-100022 [CIN:UG3040MH2Z001PLCL31691)

B E,\QWWQ\W /3{/

Bhavesh Dhopelia Mzdhavan Mensn Vishal Suri

Partner Managing Dircctor
Membership No: 042070 W [DIN: 06413771}
Mambsi

14t May 2021 ﬁ w V(# L N }\

Farrsukb Kolah Pravesh Patod
Chief Financial Officer Cowperty Serretary
Mumbai [CS No: A5T964]
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements

as at 3 March 202}
Note 1
1A Company overview

1B.1

I1B.2

1B3

1B4

&

@

W

SOTC Travel Limited (‘the Company') formerly known as SOTC Travel Private Limited is public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in lndia The
Company is cagaged in diversified travel and travel related businesses, working as travel agent, tour operator and as fully fledged money changer.

The financial statements were approved and authorised to issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of directors at its meeting held on 7 May,
2021,

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 notified under Section 133 of Companics Act, 2013 (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The fi ial has been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention, except for the following Assets and Liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:
+ Cenain financial Asssts and Liabilities (incleding mutual fund inv ) that are ed at fair value;

»  Defined benefit plans  plan assets measured at fair value;

*  Sharc-based payments measured at fair value

The fi ial stat are p d in Indian Rupees {‘INR') which is also the Company's functional currency and all values are rounded off to nearest lakhs
{00,000}, except otherwise indicated. wherever the amount is indicated as zero if construes a value less than 50,000,

Going Conern

As at 31 March 2021, the Company's net worth is Rs 4,208.21 lakhs. The Comparty during the year has made a net loss of Rs 5,074.17 lakhs (2020: Loss of Rs.
887.21 lakhs). On account of the COVID 19 restrictions, the busi of the Company has been ly affected and accordingly, the Company has obtained
support letier from its holding company indicating that the holding company will continue to provide financial support as is y to maintain the Company as a
going concern for the foreseeable fiture and 1o meet its liabilities as and when they fall due for the for a period of minimum twelve months from the balance sheet
date.

Management believes that the future business plan and continued suppont from holding company will enable the Company to setile liabilitics as they fall duc. Based
on the above, the Company is confident of its ability to meet the funds requirement and to continue its business as a going concemn and accordingly the financial

statements have been prepared on going concem basis.

Use of estimates

The preparation of fi jal in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ('GAAP’) in India requires that management makes judgment,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amotmts of Assets and Liabilitics, disclosure of contingent liabilitics as of the date of the financiat statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based
upon management’s evaluation of facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial siatements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision (o ac ing csti is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policics that have the most significant effects on the amoumnts recognised in the financial statements is
included in the following notes

Note 24 - Determination of whether a particular service is rendered in the capacity of a principal or agent

Note 30 - Determining the ainount of expected credit loss on financial assets (imcluding trade reccivables)

Note 2.2 - Lease classification

A plions and extimation uneertainties

Tnformation about assumptions and estimation uncerainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the financial statement is included in
the following notes:

Note 1C - Going Concern and Impact of COVID -19

Note 2 - Estimate of useful life used for the purposes of depreciation and amortisation on property plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Note 6 - Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be nsed;

Note 36 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Note 5, 9, 13, 14 and 24 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources

Note 30 - Impairment of financial assets

Note 2 - Impairment of non financial assets

Curremt  non-current classification
All d Liabilities are classified into Current and Non-current;

15
n ¢ o lséyﬁ current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
inis t isedin, or is intended for sale or ¢ ption in, the company's normal operating eycle;
b)i "7 fo  epurpose of being traded;
CeyiE, ™ gdto  real  within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d)q‘fsé ¢hga8  uiv  tunless itis restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a Liability for at lcast 12 months after the reporting date,
e incl  th t portion of non-current financial Assets, All other Assets are classified 2s non-current.

W bai- 400 063

*




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at 3] March 2021

1B Significant acc ing policies (Continued)
IB4  Current non-curreni classification (Continued)
Liabilities
A Liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following crileria.
a) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;
by it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

c) itis due {o be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d) the Company docs not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Liability for ot least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liabiity that could,

at the option of the counterparty, result in its seitlement by the issue of Equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current Liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current

Operating cycle:
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Based on the above definition and the

nature of services provided, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current  non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

IB.S  Property, Plans and Equipment's
Mcasurement at recoghition:
Property, plant and equipment is measured al cost less accumlated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the
assel’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only whea it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cast of the item can be measured reliably. Al other repairs and 1 are charged 1o the Stat of Profit and Loss during the period
in which they are incumred. The camying of any P accounted for as a sey asset 15 o gnised when replaced. Losses arising from the
retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of assets which are carried at cost is recogitised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation:
Depreciation is provided pro-rata to the period of use, under the straight line method, over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimate of the uscful life of
the Furniture and fixtures has been assessed based on its nature, usage, expected physical wear and tear, the operating conditions, manufacturers warranties and

maintenances support, etc.
In respect of all other assets the Company believe that the existing usefui life represents Lhe best useful estimated lives of the assets and are at the rates which

comresponds (o the usefil lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Estimated usefu life

Assets

(in years)
Furniture and Fixiures 5
Office Equipment's (including air conditioners) 3
Vehicles 5
Computer hardware b

Leasehold lmprovemenis are amortised over the period of the lease or usefiel life of the asset whichever is lower,
Property, plant and equipment not ready tor the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-ptogress".

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
approprizie. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets® residnal values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
sppropriate, at the end of cach reporting period. An asset’s carying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

% Co
o ‘e
& 14 los o

CANRE.
0.
el

)

f an item of property, plant and equip is gnized on disposal or when no fiture economic benefits arc expected from its use or
Yoss arising from the Derccognition of an item of property, plant and equip is ! a5 the diff betwecen the net disposal
jing amount of the fiem and is recognized in the $ of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.

n o




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2021

1B Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1B6  Imangible aysels
Measurement at recognition:

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and acenmulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a
straight line basis over their cstimated useful lives, The amortisation period and the arortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the
expected useful life of the asset is significamly different from previous estimates, the amortisati peried 15 changed accordingly.

The camying value of these intangible asscts is reviewed at beast annually for impairment and adjusted 1o the recoverable amount if required.

(i} Goodwill

Goodwill acquired on busi combination is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if°
events or in cirg indi that it might be impaited, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment fosses, Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units for the purpose of inpairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or Groups of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units ar Groups of units are identified at the lowest level 3t which Goodwill is monitored for
intenal management purpases, which in our case are the operating segments.

h

(it) Other Intangible Assets
Intangible asscts, including computer software are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Amortisation methods and periods:

Assets ' Estimated useful Life
(in years)
Software
Derecognition:
The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecogaized on dispasal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal The gain or loss
arising from the Dy gnition of an gible asset is d as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset

and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

1B.7  Impairment of assets
Non-financial Assels are tested for impainnent whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Management

periodically using, Iand internal sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired,

For the purpose of impairment testing, Goodwill acquired in a business combination, is from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash
generating units (CGUs) that are expected o benefit from the combination. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that arc
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. Each CGL) or a combination of CGUs to which goodwill is so allocated represents the
lowest level at which Goodwill 1s monitored for internal management purpose and it is not larger than an operating segment of the Company

The recoverable amount is higher of the assel's net selling price or value in use, which mcans the present value of future cash flows evpected to arige from the
continung use of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an Asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an evemt
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an asset is increased to its revised frecoverable amount, provided that this amount does
not exceed the camying amount that woudd have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impainnent loss been recognized for

the Asset in prior years

IB8  Financiol instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial Asset of one of' the entity and a financial Liability or equily instrument of another entity, Financial

Assets and Liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the mstrument

Financial assers:
Classification and recog

= Financial assers at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost 1f these financial assets are held within a business whose objective 15 to hold these assets to collect contractual cash

the contractual terms of the financial assets Bive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

t ding. interest income from those financial asset is included as a part of the company’s income in the Statement of Profit & Loss using the effective

& &. Jma 2

) x5
Q" janFedt, .
1. & ass . ai foir value through profit or loss
cenl:esﬁwu] assc are easured at fair value through profit or loss unless they arc measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on
stefh mmtw " . ciransaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asscts and liabilitics a1 fair value through profit or loss are immediately
e Gor [in 8 tof profit and loss.
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Significant ing policies (Continued)
Financial instrumems (Continued)

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Fi ial assets are d at fair value through other comprehensive income if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achicved by both

collecting contractual cash flow and selling financial assots and the coniractual terms of the financial assets give rise on a specified date to cash fows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amounts outstanding,

= Invesiment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary(ies) are measured at cost less impairment,

De-recognition

A financial asset is derecognized when the right to receive the contractual cash flow is expired or cancelled or the nature of such assets changes that it is no longer a
financial instrument.

Impairtment of fnancial assets :
The company assess at each date of Balance Sheet whether a financial assets or group of financial assets is impaired. In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company

applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impainment loss on the financial assets and credit risk exposure:

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on

lifetime ECLs at each reponting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impainnent loss on other financial assets and risk expo;u:c. the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit cisk since initial recognition. If eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since iitial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Financial liabilities:

Classificarion amd recognition

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such
liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, payables, or as derivatves designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialiy at fair value and, in the case payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafis, lease liabilities and detivative financial instruments.

Derecognition ;

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligntion under the ligbility is discharged or ¢ lied or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on snbstantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original lisbility and the recogrition of a new liability. The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or Joss.

Offsatting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offsct the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to scttie on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simuitancously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future cvents and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty,

Derivative financial instnimente

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign exchange risks. For contracts
where hedge accounting is not followed, such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract 15
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss account,

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valustion techniques that are used to measure fair valuc that are either observable or ungbservable and consists of the
foliowing three levels:

Level I Inputs are quoted prices (wnadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs arc other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or iiability, cither directly (i.c. as prices) or indircctly (i.c.
derived from prices).

Level 3 Inputs are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on
assumptions that arc neither suppoerted by prices from observable current market tr ions in the same i nor are they based on available market data,

14th Floor,

iment 1s a that evid idual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instr recognised by
gnised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements

as at 3! March 2021

1B Significant ing policies (Continued)

1BS  Provisions and Contingent liabifities
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an cutitow of’
sconomic benefits will be required to seule the obligation, Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet daie. The provisions are d on an undisc d basis.
Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, htiganon, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. arc recognised when it is prabable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount can be estimated reltably
A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
resources, or a present obligation whose amount camnot be estimated relizbly. Contingent Habilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed, unless the
possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are ncither recogmised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingenl assets are assessed continually and if it is viruaily certain
that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

IB.10  Revenue recognition
Revenue is d based on ion price, which is the consideration paid for services. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects 1o reccive in exchange for those services. Revenue from rendering of services 15
net of Indirect taxes and discounts.
income from operation
The Company cams revenue from travel and related services, financial services.
- Fravel and related services comprises of leisure tours packages within India and outside India along with travel related services viz travel insurance and visa
services. Revenue on leisure tours  holiday's packages are recognized on the completion of the performance obligation which is on the date of departure of the tour.
It also includes income from the sale of airline tickets is recognized as an agent on the basis of net commission earned, at the time of issuance of tickets, as the
Company does not assume any perfonmance obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of an airline ticket {o the customer. Performance linked bonuses from
airlines are recognized as and when the performance obligations under the schemes are achieved.
- Financial Services comprise of income arising from the buying and selling of foreign currencies on the net marging earmed, commissions on sale of foreign
currency denominated prepaid cards and agency commissions from MoneyGram and Xpr 'y on Y remi Revenue from financial services are
recognized by reference to the time of services rendered.
Contract balances

a)  Contract essets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer. if the Company performs by rendering services 1o a customer before
the pays consideration or before payment is du, a contract asset is recognised for the earncd consideration that is conditional,
b) Coniract lisbilities

A contract lizbility is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has reccived consideration from the Ifa pays
consideration before the Company renders services 10 the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, Contract {iabilitics are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

1B.I1  Cost recognition
Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have boon classificd sucnding w thein primary nature. The costs of the company are broadly categorised in
etnployee benefit expenses, depreciation and amortisation and other operating expenses. Employee benefit exp include employec compensation, allowances
paid, contribution to various funds and staff welfare exp Other operating exp majorly include sub-contractor charges, rent, recruitment and iraining
expenses, travelling and conveyance, legal and professional fees and communication expenses.

IB.12  [leases
As a fessee

A

v

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contro! the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether;

(1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

{2) the Company has substantially all of the cconomic bencfits from use of the asset throughout the period of the Icase and

{3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initiafly measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the Icase liability adjusted for any lease payments made at ot before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

-use asset is depreciated using the siraight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or

1 cr@%t term, The estimated useful lives of right-of-use asscts are defermined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
1ght-of subsequemly measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any and adjusted for any emient of the Jease
LikifgRo".

Central Wing. Tower 4,

FhmdPendiabili  is i ° ally measured at the present vaiue of the lcase payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate

Westgpblicts HGY or,  that rate cannot be readily determined, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases,
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Notes to the financial statements

1B
1B.12

1B.13

iB.14

Significant accounting policies {Continued)
Leases (Continued}

Lease payments included in the measuremeni of the lease liability comprise the following:

Fixed payments;

Variable lease payments;

The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewsl period if the company is
reasonably certain (o exercise an extension option, and penalties for carly termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably cenain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, It is remeasured when there is & change in future lease payments arising from a
change in terms of the contract, if there is & change in the company’s esti of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, When the lease
hability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recopnise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low valuc. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

The Company iease asset classes primarily consist of leasehold improvement.
As 8 lessor

A lease for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease at the inception of lease. When the terms of the lease transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a kessor is recognised as income on a stratght-line basis over the lease term

Business combination

‘The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all busi combinations, regardless of whether Equity instruments or other assets ane acquired. The
consideration {ransferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises of:

. fair values of the Assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred 10 the former owners of the acquired business;

. equity interests issued by the Company; and

. fair value of any assct or liability resulting from a ingent considerati gement,

Identifiable Assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities d in a busi bination are, with limited exceptions, o d initially at thew fair

values at the acquisition date. The Company recognises any non-controtling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired entity's net identifiable assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

. consideration transferred;

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the scquired entity, and

. acquisition~date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill.

If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is accurnulated in Equity as capital reserve.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Far the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial imstitutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original iatwitics of thew months or less that are readily converuble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insipnificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts,

To be classified as cash and cash equivalents, the financial asset must
beveadily convertible into cash;
@ cam risk of changes in value; and
St iod of three months or less at acquisition.
, Cash and Cash Equivalents includes Cash on Hand, Cheques/Drafts on Hand, Remittances in Transit, Balances with Bank held in Current
eposils with maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafis are repayable on demand and form an integral part of an entity's cash
s‘- ed as a component of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafls are shown within barrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet,




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2021

1B Sigaificant ing policies (Continued)

1B.15 FEmplayee benefits :

(a} Short-term cuployee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid, ¢.g. salanes, short term bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 10 pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

(b) Post-cmployment bencfits:
Defined contribution plan :

The Company's provident fund contribution paid / pnyable under the recognised provident fund scheme and the employees' state insurance contribution is
gniscd as an exp in the S of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plan :

Gratuity :

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan, The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating,
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their services in the current and prior periods. These benefits are discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any plan asscts is deducted therefrom.

Contribution to Gratuity is based on the requirement of the trust with whom the Company maintains the fund balance. The Company's liability is actuariatly
determined (using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of each year. The of net i p Jeulated by applying the liability discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or assets is charged or credited in the statement of profit and loss. Any differences between the interest income on plan assets and the
vetum actually achicved, and any changes in the linbilites over the year dne to changes in actuarail assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are
recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation bry an independent actnary at cach Balance Sheet
date, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise (o an additional unit of cmpl benefit entil and

es each unit scf ly to build up the final obligation, The cbligations are measured at the present value of the estimated fature cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligations under the defined benefit plen are based on the market yields on government bonds as at the balance
sheet date. When the calculation resnlis in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past
servaee costs and the present value of any fiture refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan,

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuariat gains and losses, the retum on plan assets {excluding interest) and the effect of asset
ceiling (if any) are recognized in OCI. The Company d ines the net i P (income) on the net defined benefit linbility (2sset) for the period by
applying the discount rate uscd to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability {asset) taking
into account amy changes in the net defined benefit liability {asset) during the period as a resuli of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit and loss.

{c} Compensated absences :

As per the leave policy of the company employees are entitled to svail 30 days of ieave during a calendar year, any carry forward or encashment of the unutilized
leave balance is not allowed. At reporting date, liability pertaining to comp d absences is calculated based an total leave balances of cach cmployee.
{d) Employee stock options ;

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards ~ i.e. stock options  granted to employees is recognised as personnel expenses, with a corresponding
increase in Fapity, aver the perind in which the empleyees beeomo entitled to the awards. The amount tecugnised ds an expense is adjusted to retlect the anmber ot
awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ulti ly recognised as an exp is
based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

I1B.16  Foreign currency transactions :
Forcign currency transactions are recorded into Indian rupee using the exchange rates prevaihing on the date of the respective ions. Exchange difference
arising on foreign currency transactions, between the actual rate of settiement and the rate on the date of the transactions, is charged or credited to the Statement of
profit and loss,
Monetary assets and liabilitics d inated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date
rali net cxchange gain or loss on such conversion, if any, is credited / charged to the Statement of profit and loss, Non monetary assets are recorded at
celﬁ "'ng on the date of the transactions. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carricd at historical cost. A foreign currency monetary item is
Q_ I,gn/& if it has original maturity of one year or more,
4e} 41 Floot,
Cente igol derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange coniracts, to hedge its forcign curency risks. Such derivative financial
astulens a&ca' itially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is cntered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, with
wgs\%‘i#mr b Ue T ised in Statement of Profit and Loss, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities

al cis e!gau'vc.
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as af 31 March 2021

1B Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1B.17  income [axes:
Income tax expense comprises cwrent and deferred 1ax. It 1s recogmsed in Profit of Loss except to the extent that it relaies 10 a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in OCE

Current income tax:
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or reccivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect
of previous years, It is measured using tax rates ar wvely d at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

A N

Current tax Assets and Liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a)  hasa legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends either to scitle on a net basis, or 1o realise the asset and settle the liability simulranecusly.

Deferred income tax:
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts

used for taxation purposcs. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
*  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or lisbilitics in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor

taxable profit or loss:
. y diff relaied to inv in subsidianics and igtes to the extent that the Company’s is able to control the timing of the reversal of the

'y

temporary differences and it is probabie that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
*  taxable temporary differences anising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future 1axable
profits will be avaiiable against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting datc and are reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxabie profits will be
availabie against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates
at the reporting date.

The measurcent of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company’s expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the camrying amount of its assets and liahilitics.

q

or suk ively

1B.18 Earmings per share (EPSY ;
Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average ber of Equity and dilutive Equity equivalent shares outstnding during the
period except where the results would be anti-dilutive. The dilutive potential Equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they
have been issued at a later date,

IB.19  Recers Ac ing Pro 1S -
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated March 24, 2021 has amended Scheduie 111 of the Companies Act, 2013, which shall be effective from
April 1. 2021. Key amendments relating to Division Il which refate to companies whose financial ctatements ara required to comply with Cumpanies (ladian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet :

* Ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress in specified format.

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities®, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

= Certain additional disc} in the of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period etrors and restated balances at the
beginning of the current reporting period,

*If TEppaIRigs not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclasure of details of where it has

A
QA . Sfﬁ'b%?. i (o’gue

der *additional regulatory requirement” such as compliance with approved schemes of' arrangements, compliance with number of layers of

tsyditle  ceds\bf immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances o promoters, directors, key managerial persome! (KMP) and
Cenli}g pastics, de "ls of{ benami property held, disclosure relating to ratios ctc.
rpss HighwaY.
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2021

1B Significant ing poficies (Continued)
1B.19  Recent Acc ing Pr cements -(contimued)

Enhanced disclosure for borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets such as agreement of quarterly retums or statements
of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions with books of accounts and if not, summary of reconciliation and reason of material
discrepancies, if any.

Statement of profit and loss:

+ Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and erypto or vinual currency specificd under the head “additional
information” in the notes forming part of financial statements.

The Company is in the process of evalusting the above amendments.

1C Guing Concern and Impact of COVID-19:

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic. Responding to the potentially serious threat of the pandemic, the
Indian Government has taken a series of measures to contain the owtbreak, which included imposing ‘lock-downs” across the country which is extended from time to
time, The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various aclivities due to COVID-19 pandemic have posed challenges to all the busi of the Company
Lockdewn guidelines issned by Central/State gov daled ion of air traffic and other forms of public transport as well as closute of hotel operations,
With the lifting of the partial lockdown restrictions, the Company has started re-opening it’s branches and other establishments. The Company expecis all the
operations becoming normal in & phased manner after the lockdown is lified and the confidence of corporates / travelers is restored. The Company expects the
demand for its services 1o pick up albeit at a slower pace once lockdown is lifted. The Company has assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the carrying amount of its
assets and revenue recognition. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible fiture uncertainties, the Company, as on date of approval of these financial

has used i I and external sources of information to the extent available. The Company, based on cucrent estimates and information, expect the
carrying amount of these assets to be recovered. The Company has assessed the impact for existing and anticipated effects of COVID-19 on the fitture cash flow
projections on the basis of significant assumptions as per the available information. The Company has comforiable liquidity position to meet 1ts commitiments and 1
addition the funds are expected 10 be generated from the operating activities. The Company has undertaken various cost saving initiatives to maximise operating cash
flows and conserve cash position in the given situation. Based on aforesaid assessmeni management believes that as per, estimates made conservatvely, the
y will continue as a going concem. The Company continues to monitor any material changes to its COVID-19 impact assessment, resulting from the fisire

2 négonditions and future uncertainty, if any.
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note-2 Property, plant and equipment

Comp 1 hold Furniture and .
hardware  Improvements Fixtures Office Equipment Total
Gross Block Amount Amount Amount A A
As at 1 Apnil 2020 521.05 11288 7734 163.64 374,91
Additions duning the year 27.40 31.06 10,70 29.62 98,78
Disposals during the year 136 36.24 373 555 T4.88
Gross carrying value as of 31 March 2021 547.09 107.70 56.31 187.71 898.81
A lated depreciation as of 1 April 2020 42232 59.13 43.30 109.04 633.79
Depreciation charge during the year 7738 20.92 12.91 40.80 152.01
Deduction on disposals during the year 1.36 36.24 29,18 5.54 72.32
Accumulated depreciation as of 31 March 2021 498.34 43.81 27.03 14430 713,48
Carrying vslue 25 of 31 March 2021 48.75 63.89 19.28 43.41 185,33
AEECEE —— ==_
Gross Block Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
As at 1 April 2019 491,21 68.23 611 108.74 728.29
Additions during the year 5642 47.36 22.84 57.81 184.43
Disposals during the year 26.58 27 5.61 291 3131
Gross carrying value as of 31 March 2020 521.05 112.38 77.34 163.64 874.91
Acc lated depreciation a5 of 1 April 2019 314,92 49.75 38.65 77.51 480.83
Depreciation charge during the year 133.80 12.09 10.26 34.43 190.58
Deduction on disposals during the year 26,40 27 5.61 290 37.62
Accumulated depreciation as of 31 March 2020 422,32 59.13 43.30 109.04 633.79
Carrying value as of 31 March 2020 98.73 53.75 34.04 54.60 241.12
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note-2.1 Right of use Asscts Amount in Rs Amount in Rs
" Bulinas 2 Buildings
Gross carrying value as at begaining 4,084.94 -
Additions Ind AS116 Transition adjustment - 1,901.72
Additions during the year 21990 2,597.09
Disposals during the year 2,261.48 413.87
Gross carrying value 2s at year end 2,043.36 4,084.94
Accumula tion as at begaining 792.02 -
Amo _ oncllaigsd theyear 67937 798.68
% ) \c year 456.96 6.66
llatd'd‘im%ieurn‘f ne nt year end 1,004.43 oL
Geoatral Wing, TOWED S,
i 1,028.93 3,292.92
=

et al realad! s "Z rend
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note-2.1 Lease liabilites

31 March 202) arch 2020
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year Amount Amount
Balance as at begaining 341775 -
On account of Transition to Ind AS 116 - 1,901 72
Additions 219.90 2,597.09
Disposal (1,948.79) (407.21)
Interest on lease liabilities 202,76 185,73
Payment of lease liabiliues (649.82) (859.58)
Lease rent waiver {102.81) -
Balance as at year end 1,139,00 3417.75
Classification as
Non current 821.13 274193
Current 317.86 675.82
1,139.00 3417.75
Note: - Below are the contractual maturinies of lease liabilines as of March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted basis:
Less than one year 398.26 87794
Between one and five years 87735 2,915.68
More than five years 99.69 262.39
1,375.30 4,056.01
Renmtal expense recognised for short-term leases for the year ended 303.62 543,86
Rental expense recognised for low value leases (other than short term as disclosed above) for the year ended - -
Expenses related to short team Jeases and low value leases 303.62 543.86
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Lease under IND AS 116
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 29) 202.76 185.73
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 679.37 798.68
382.13 984.41
Amount recognized in Statement of Cash Flow
Repayment of Lease liabilities-Principal amount 447.06 673.85
Repayment of Lease liabilitics-Interest amount 202.76 185,73
649,82 359.58
Extension vptions
The lease contracts of the company contain extension/ | aptions which are exercisable only by the Company and not by the lessors. The Company includes in its

! termn, then the lease rentals will

lease term such extension/rencwal options that the Company is reasonably certain o exercise. If the lease is extended beyond the
be mutually agreed between the panies bascd on the fiir value of lease rent at the time of extension.

& Co,

cial year the company has taken action to sumrender vacate some lease before completion of tenure as ioned in lease Agr The
QR hgge in books of accounts and difference of Rs. 144.27 lakhs between ROU asset Rs 1,637.66 Jakhs & ROU Liability Rs 1,781.93 lakhs s on date
{n ’ i ized as profit or loss on retirement of lease in the statement for profit and loss. Further, impact of the same has been considered in Lease
lexpROU on 31st March 2021
WelRarn Express Highway.
regaon (East).
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note-2.3 Intangibles
Computer

Goodwill Software Total

Amount Amount Amount
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2020 268.50 473.03 741.53
Additions during the year - 54.15 54.15
Disposals duning the year -
Gross carrying value as 8t 31 March 2021 268.50 527.18 795.67
Accumulated amortization as at 1 April 2020 - 405.37 405,37
Amortization charge during the year - 53.58 53.58
Deduction on disposals during the year -
Acc lated amortization as at 31 March 2021 - 458.96 458.96
Net Carryiog vaiue as at 31 March 2021 268.50 68.22 336.72
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2019 268.50 389.66 658.16
Additions during the year - 83.37 83.37
Disposals during the year - -
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2020 268,50 473.03 741.53
Accumulated amortization as at 1 April 2019 - 330.82 330.82
Amortization charge during the year 74.55 7455
Deduction on disposals during the year -
A lated amortization as 2t 31 March 2020 - 405.37 405.37
Net Carrying value as at 31 March 2020 268.50 67.66 336 16
Intangible assets (sofiware)
There are no intemally generated / developed software.
Nature of Goodwill
Goodwill recognised on the acquisition of the residual business of Kuomns Business Travel.
Impairment testing of Goodwill
Far the purposcs of impairment testing, Goodwill has been allocated as follows.

Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Acquisition of the business wravei division 268.90 268.50
268.50 268.50

The recoverable amount was based on fair value less costs of disposal, estimated using discounted cash flows, The fair value measurement was categorised as & Level 3 fur
value based on inputs in the valuation technique used,

"The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below. The valnes assigned 1o the key assumptions represent management's assessment of
future trends in the relevant industries and have been based on historical data from both extemnal and internal SOUTCEes.

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
) annum 7.55% £.20%
e&u@ Glue rate per annin . 5% 5%
rte (average of next 2 years) per annum 5% 5%

<
Q14 koo
c‘,_m djpepdordid i post  measure estimated based on the historical industry average weighted-average cost of capital, with the possible no debt leveraging and intemal

rajpofrdaitof 75 4 xunately,

Weglern Express Highwa.
ﬁ}flm aiable  unt  Goodwill has been caleulated using the discounted cash flow method.
Mumbai(‘{u 063
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SOTC Travet Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
arat 31 March 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3

Investments

AT ts in subsidiary company

I. Investments in Equity Shares at amortised cost{ unquoted)

2,108,000 (31 March 2020: 2,108,000) equity shares of USD | each, fully paid-up, of Travel Circle
International (Mauritius) Limited.

IL Investments in preference shares at amortised cost { unguoted)
11,600,000 (31 March 2020; I1,600,000) 6% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
of USD 1 each, fully paid-up, of Travel Circle International (Mauritius) Limited.

Less ; Impairment loss

Aggregate book value of unquoted non-current investments

Extent of equity interest in subsidiary:
Travel Circle Intemational (Mauritius) Limited

Note 4
Loans (non—current)
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Loan to related parties [refer Note 38)
Seeurity deposits

Considered good

Credit impaired

Less : Loss allowance

Note 5
Other fingncial assets (non-corrent)
{(Unsecured)

Fixed deposit accounts with original maturity more than twelve months*
*All the above FD are lien against margin money deposits.

Nate 6
Income taxes
A. The major P of i tax exp are as under:

(i) Income tax recognised in statement of Profit and Loss
Current fax

In respect of corrent year

Changes in estimates related to previous year

Deferred tax
Increase in deferred tax assets

tncome Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

(ii) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax on of defined benefit plans

L 4

I tax ised in OC1

(2

B. Reconciliation of tax exp and the ing profit for the year is as under :

Loss before tax
Tax nsing the Company’s domestic tax rate (current year 34.94% and previous Year 34.94%)

Tax cifect of:
Non-dedu ~ le tax expenses

\mﬁe
e&?\tu on MAT credit catitlement
P

Ath Flool
2 otal g, TOWET 4.
ed 12 peco i in Other Comprehensive Income

&I‘ﬁﬁmﬂ@!ﬁ 8¢ tement of Profit and Loss

oregaon (E2st),
ambai - 4p0 063

*

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount Amount
1,360,83 1,360.83
1,360.83 1,360,83
7.488.45 7,488.45
7,488.45 7.488.45
8,349.28 8,849.28
5,849.28 8.849.28
8,849.28 8,849.28
51% 31%
- 550.39
426,92 460,77
8.60 5547
435.52 516.24
{8.60) {35.47)
426.92 460.77
426.92 1,011.16
181.14 171.56
181.14 171.56
{2,720.66) (531.03)
{2,720.66) (331.03)
(20.09) (16.91)
(20.09) (16.51)
(7.794.83) {1.418.24)
(2,723.82) (495.59)
3.16 {35.44)
{2,720.66) (531.03)
(20.09) (16.91)
{2,740.75) (547,94)




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 Meorch 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note &
Tocome taxes (Continued)

C. The major components of deferved tax (liabilities)/assets arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

Balance ason  Recognised in Recognised Net Balance a3 on
31 March 2020  profit or foss in OCI 31 March 2021
Deferved tax Asset/(Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment 12289 9.62 132.50
Employee benefits 252.75 (11.76) (20.09) 220.99
Tax losses 1,123.34 2,755.58 3,878.93
Provisions 453.05 (IL31) 41,74
Other items 42.93 (21.47) 21.46
Deferred tax Assets /(Liabilities) 1,994.96 2,720.66 (20.09) 4,695.53
Balance as on Recognised in Recognised Net Balance as on
31 March 2019 profit or loss in OCI 31 March 2020
Deferred tax Asset/(Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment 50.00 7289 122,89
Employee benefits 35351 (93.45) {16.91} 25275
Tax losses 52011 603.23 1,123.34
Provisions 482.40 (29.35) 453.05
Other items. 6521 (22.28) 42,93
Deferred tax Assets /(Liabilities) 1,430.83 531.04 {16.91} 1,994.96
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount Amount
D. Deferred tax vefecied in bal: sheet as foll
Deferred tax Assets 4,605.53 1.994.96
Deferred tax Liabilities - -
Deferred tax Assets (net} 4,695.53 1,994.96
Note 7
Income tax Asset
Advance tax (net of provision of Tax) 1,637.16 4,108.39
1,637.16 4,108,39
Note 8 ;
Current Investments
pi in mutual funds (g d)
{Carried at fair vatue through profit or loss)
Nil (31 March 2020: 93,921.78) units of Kotak Liquid Scheme-Growth Option-Direct Plan at each Nil - 1,001,08
(31 March 2020: Rs1,065.86)
Nil (31 March 2020: 30,768.45) units of SBI Premicr Liquid Fund - Growth Option - Direct Plan at - 1,001.12
each Nil (31 March 2020: Rs 3,253.72)
Nil (31 March 2020: 13,511 3) untts of HDFC [iquid Fund - Growth Plan - Direct Plan ot cach Nil - 40117
(31 March 2020: Rs 2,969.12)
Nil (31 March 2020: 929,141.78) units of ICICI Prudential Liquid -Direct -Growth at each Nil (31 - 1,001.14
March 2020:Rs 107.75)
Nil (31 March 2020: 99,592.43) units of ABSL Money Manager Fund - Growth-Direct Plan a1 Nil - 703.84
(31 March 2020: Rs 1,080.24)
- 4,108.35
- 4,108.35

ts and market value thereof




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 31 March 2027
(Al amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9

Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - secured

Trade receivables considered good - ed

Trade reccivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables credit impaired

Less :- Impainment Joss allowance

Trade and other receivables includes :
Dues from related parties - considered good [refer Note 38]

Movement in expected credit foss allowance on trade receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition dunng the period

Changes in loss allowance doring the year
Balance at the end of the year

Note 10
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks :
in current accownt
Cash on hand

Note 11
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Short term deposits (Original maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months)

Deposit balances (including those disclosed under other financial assets

2020: Rs 214.87).

Note 12
Loans

Unsecured, considered good carried at amortised cost except etherwise stated

Loan to related partics [refer Note 38]

Security deposits
Considered good
Credit impaired

Less :- Loss allowance

Note 13
Other financial Assets (current)
{Unsecured )

Other receivables
Censidered good
Credit impaired

Less :- Loss allowance

& Co. QD

s aramed but 1 duq\un Ioan to related panty

Legi]
pempédbiitho duc bu fixed deposits with banks

vesfingiRfial

West  Express Highway
Go gaon {Easl.

pumbai - 400 063

*

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Amount Amount
1,179.21 5,662,54
636.41 734.95
1,815.62 6,397.49
{636.41) {734.95)
1,179.21 5,662.54
294,75 1.540,32
734.95 994.23
(98.53) {259.28)
636.41 734.95
3,763.13 2,556.30
20.84 61.55
3,783.97 2,617,85
4639 43,30
46,39 43.30

{non-current) in Note 5} include fixed deposits under lien aggregating to Rs 227.53(31 March

5,193.99 550.39
89030 2,091.59
406.90 300,22

1,297.20 2.391.81
(496.90) {300.22)
$90.30 2,091.59

6,084.29 264198
102.94 2,014.95

69.12 61.63
172,06 2.076.59
(69.12) {61.63)
102,94 2,014.95

85,76 155.80
129.48 7.83

0.49 1.96

99.51 -

41817 218054




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 37 March 2021
{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 14 Amount Amount
Other current Assets
Prepaid expenses 154.08 119.32
Balances with government Authorities 1,305.25 694.78
(Net of provision of GST recoverable Rs. 776.28 for March 2021 and Rs. 2,210.63 for March 2020)
Advance to vendors
Considered good 1,631.66 5,587.84
Credit impaired 45.79 45,79
1,677.45 5,633.63
Less :- Loss allowance (45.79) {45.79)
1,631.66 5,587.84
SiafTf advance
Considered good 24,01 244.52
Credit impaired 97.32 9845
i21.34 34297
Less :- Loss allowance {97.32) (98.45)
24.01 244.52
3,115.00 6,646.46
Advance to vendors includes ;
Advance to related party - Unsecured, Considered good frefer note 38] 57.09 17.830
Note 15
Equity Share Capitat
Authorised :
10,000 (31 March 2020: 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each. 1.00 100
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
10,000 (31 March 2020 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up. 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
A. Reconciliation of ber of sh ling at the beginning and end of the year :
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of face valee of Rs 10 each, fatly paid-up
At the commencement of the year 10,000 1,60 10,600 i.00
Addition during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

B. Rights , preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares
Equity shares of face vaiue of Rs 10 each fully paid-up

The Company has a single class of Equity Shares having face value of Rs 10 cach. Accordingly, Equity Shares shall rank pari passu with regerd to dividends and share in
the Company's residual assets after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The equity sharcholders are entitled 1o receive dividend as declared from time to
time The voting riphte of an Fauity $hareholder are in propartion to ito share of the paid up equily capital of U Company, Voling tighis vt be cacicised T sespect
of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares wiil be entitled 1o receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after diswibution of all preferential
amounts in proportion 1o the number of Equity Shares held by them.

C. Shares held by Holding Company / Ultimate Holding Company / Subsidiaries of Holding Company

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fislly paid-up held by:
“Thomas Cook {India) Limited (‘Holding Company’) including its nominees 10,080 1.06 10,000 1.00
10,000 1.60 10.000 1.00
—
D. Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares:
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
& C 0. Mo, of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
s o ({ each, fully paid-up, held by:
141h Floal,
Geekqutting L1 “ted (Holding Company') 10,000 100 10,000 10¢
Nesco Cented,

mﬁq)ﬂﬁi‘?‘ﬁ%?ﬁ’? red issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
Gosegaon (E3sH.
Mumbai - 4010 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount Amount

Note 16
Other Equity
Optionally Convertible Non -Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 8,600.00 B8.600.00
Retained eamings (7,373.98) (2,299.81)
Capital reserve arising out of Amalgamation 638.04 638.04
Capital Redempiton Reserve 1,400.00 1,400.00
Other Comprehensive Income 58.25 18.76
Employce share option outstanding account 884,90 725.63

4,207.22 9,082.62
Notes:-
(i) Optionally Convertible Non -Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
Authorised :
160,000,000 (31 March 2020: 100,000,000} 0.01% Optionally Convertible Non -
Cumuistive Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 sach. 10,000.00
lssued, subscribved and fully paid up:
86,000,000 (31 March 2020: 86,000,000) 0.01% Cptionally Convertible Non -
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each,

8,600.00 8,600.00

§,600.00 8,600.00
A. Reconciliation of ber of shares ding at the beginning and end of the year :

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

0.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- cach, fully paid-up
Opening 860.00 8,600.00 260.00 8,600.00
Redemption during the year - - - -
Cutstanding at the end of the year 860.00 8,600.00 260.00 8,600.00

B. Rights , preferences and restrictions attached to equity and preference shares
0.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of &s. 10/~ each, fully paid-up (Preference Shares)

The Company has a single class of preference shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. These preference shares are issued in consideration of the slamp exchange of
Cutbound Business Division of SOTC Travel Services Private Limited to the Company as contemplated in the Composite Scheme of arrangement and amalgamation,
The Company has issued 10,00,00,000 0.01% Opticnally Convertible Non-Cumnulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- cach to Travel Corporation {India)
Limited, as the residual of SOTC Travel Scrvices Private Limited (i e. post segregation of Outbound Business Division) is amalgamated into Travel Corporation (India)
Limited, Prefi shares ding at the end of 20 years 1.c. 31 July 2037, shall be converted into equity shares as per the conversion ratio of | preference shares of
Rs. 10/~ each into one equity share of Rs, [0/~ cach. The holders of these shares are entitled 1o Non-Cumulative dividend of 0 01% Preference shares cary A preferential
right as to dividend over equity shareholders. where dividend is not declared in respect of a financial year in the case of Non-Cumulative Preference Shares, the
entitlement for that year lapses. In the event of winding up, preference shareholders have a preferential right over equity sharcholders to be repad to the extent of capital
paid-up and dividend in arrears on such shares. The Company has an opticn to convert the preference shares or redeem the preference shares at any time after the end of
I year from the date of allotment.

C. Shares held by Holding Company / Ultimate Holding Company / Subsidiaries of Holding Company

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares A

0.01% Optionally Convertible Noo-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid-up by:
*Themas Cook {India} Limited (w.c.f . 25 November 2019) 360.00 8,600.00 850.00 8.600.00

860.00 8,600.00 864.00 8.600.00
*Pursuant to the Nalional Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Order dated 10th October 2019, the Composite Scheme of Amang & Amal ion amengst TC Forex
Servi imjled [TCF} and Travel Corporation (India) Limited {TCI] and TC Travel Services Limited [TCTSL] and SOTC Travel Management Private Limited {SOTC

Cook (India} Limited {TCIL] and Quess Corp Limited and their respective shareholders (the Scheme) has become effective from 25th November,
“Scheme/arrangement, the Inbound Business of TCI has demerged into SOTC TRAVEL and the residual business of TCI has been merged, along
v owned subsidiarics viz TCTSL and TCF, with TCIL. TCI ceased to exist w.c.f. 25th November, 2019 and residual business of TCl has been merged



SOTC Travel Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as af 3 March 2024
(Al amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B. Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
0.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid-up by:
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 260.00 100.00 860,00 160.00

E. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date;
100,000,000, 0,01% Non-Cumuiative Gptionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs, 10/- each, werc issued by the Company pursuant to the composite
h of and amalgamation in the Fi ial year ended 2017-2018

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount Amount

il. Capital Reserve

Opening Balance 638.04 53804
Closing Balance 638.04 638.04
Nature and Purpose of Reserves:-
The reserve created pursuant to Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamanon,
iit. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 1,400,00 1,400.00
Closing Balance 1,400,080 1,400,00
Nature and Purpose of Reserves:-
The reserve created out of profits in event of redemption of Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares.
iv. Retained Earnings
Opening Balance (2,299.81) (1,412.60)
Add : Net Loss for the year (5,074.17) (887.21)
Closing Balance (7,373.98) (2,299.81)
v. Other comprehensive income
Opening Balance 18.75 (12.73)
Add : Other Comprehensive Income/{loss) for the year, net of tax 39.50 31.48
Closing Balance 58.25 18.75
vi. Employee Share Option Qutstanding Account {refer Note 37
Opening Balance 71664 13227
Add : Charge for the year [refer Note 37] 159.26 293.37
Closin 884,90 725.64
& O
S B

mlm esta ‘sh equity-scttied share-based payment plans for certain categories of employees of the Company The shares of the holding Company are

i ",';“Nﬂlf ESOPSc eme  the employees of the Company.
£o Centes.
\es on lE'éS“-

3
e - 400 063

*




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 3 March 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

Note 17
O¢her financial liabilities

Lease lisbilities [refer Note 2.2)

Note 18

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits - (mon current)
Provision for Gratuity [refer Note 36)

Note 19

Borrowings

Bank Overdraft use for Cash Manag, purpose- ed repayabie on demand
Working capital demand loan-unsecured repayable on demand

Note 20

Trade payables

Total owstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises [refer Note 33]

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small enterprises ( Includes book overdrafl Rs 172 J14)

Note 21

Other financial lizbilities (¢urrent)
Security deposits

Lease laabilities [refer Note 2,2]
Current maturities of long term debts
Others

Note 22
Provisions
Pravision for employec benefits - current

Accrued salary and benefits
Compensated absences [refer Note 36}

Note 23
Othe i
'-‘E!‘ceﬁg i vmnce
% &W Qmers
cesagimgove t uthorities
niral WG, Tower 4,
Nesco Genter.
m Express Yighaty
Goregaon {gast.
Mumbai - 4

W

*

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Amount Amount
82113 2,741.93
821.13 2,741.93
373.61 359.61
373.61 359.61

2,257.34 2,673.26
150.00 -
2,407.34 2,673,26
0,84 -
12,921.15 14,058.07
12,922.00 14,058.07
262.88 27113
317.86 675,82
- 900.00
5.32 20.19
586.06 1,867.14
406.81 504.41
5522 -
462,03 504.41
293.91 517.69
9,600.00 11,765.87
193.78 334.97
10,187.66 12,618.53




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 24
Revenue from operations
Travel and related Services

Total Revenue from operations

Other operating revenue
Marketing fees and other incentive income

Unclaimed credit balances no longer required, wntten back
Other miscellaneous operating income

IND AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

i) Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss

Revenue from contract with customers
Travel and related Services
Financial Services

Total Revenue from contract with customers

ii) Disagprepate Revenue

The following table presents Company revenue disaggregated by type of revenue stream and by reportable segment

Revenue based on geography
Revenue from contract with customers
India
Overseas

Revenue based on product and services
Revenue from contract with customers
Travel and related Services
Financtal Services
Total Revenue from operations

iii) Contract Balances

31 March 202t

31 March 2020

Amount Amount
3,288.79 112,046.18
3,288,79 112,046.18

256.80 3,805.64
90.46 1,566.81
T50.65 596.42
1,097.91 5,908.87
4,386,70 117,955.05
3,281.93 112,009 78
6.86 36.40
3,288.79 112,046.18
3,259.95 107,662.35
28.84 438383
3,288.79 112,046.18
3.281.93 112,009.78
.86 3640
3,288.79 112,046.18

The contract liabilities primarily relate 1o the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is over

services delivered.
Advance Collections 1s recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer
towards leisure tour holiday's packages. Revenue on leisure tours  holiday’s packages are recognized on the completion of the performance obligation which is on the

date of departure of the tour.

Advances collected from customers 9,600,00 11,765.87
Total 9,600.00 11,765.87
Note 25
Other income
Interest Income under the effective interest method on-
Bank deposits 103.79 47.50
Loans to related parties 190.07 128.06
Others 19.58 16.13
Net foreign Exchange difference 11.00 31.71
Gain on sa urrent investments measured at FVTPL 1.83 159.89
inte 4 334.16 -
Po @ ofp Lo 148 398
c tedabistfiges wo  bac - 94,80
1 @ Wﬁé‘gﬁ ' 0.72 7.12
eslatr‘: séipless Highway. 662,62 489.19

1
Goregaed (E3%
},\umhﬂi - &00 06
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 26

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and other allowances

Contribution 1o provident fund and other funds
Compensated absences

Share-based payment to employees (refer Note 37)
Staff welfare expense

Note 27

Finance costs
Interest and finance charges on Financial Liabilities
- Interest on Term loan

- Interest on Lease liabilities

— Interest en bank over draft

— Others Financials habilities

— Bank charges

Note 28
Other expenses

Legal and professional charges

(Profit} /Loss on closure of lease
Advertisement and publicity

Operationat lease rentals

Repairs and maintenance - others
Communication expenses

Travelling expenses

Electricity charges

Rates and taxes

Printing and stationery expenses

Directors commission and sttung fees
Insurance expenses

Subscription fees

Proviston for doubtful debts and deposits
Bad debts and advance written off

Corporate social responsibility expense {refer Note below 28 (a))
Payment to auditors (refer Note below 28 (b))
Miscellaneous expenses

Note 28 (a)

Corporate social responsibitity expenditure

{a) Gross amount requited to be spent by the Company during the year
(b) Amount spent and paid during the year on

(¢} Out of above amount paid to related party

Note 28 (b)
Payment to Auditors
Statutory Audut fee
Tax Audit fee
In other capacity
Taxation matters
Centification fee
Re-imbursement of expenses

Note 29

Earnings per

A Netpr  orfhe ﬂﬁ‘z] fe to Equity Shareholders

B. Wei gen ‘ty Shares outstanding during the year
C.B ngd Wﬁ%{m ¢ X

D.P ere nal-@i"{%é )

Not Dil edeathighd REX

s ul %@[egxﬁﬁﬁam‘

Jumbar - 400

*

31 March 2021

31 March 202§

31 March 2020

31 March 2629

Amount Amount
3.,455.59 7,426.20
305.65 476.40
5522 -
159.27 293,37
238.11 678.41
4,213.84 8,874.38
15.58 147.1%
202.76 18573
237.85 11.94
63.58 181.54
3239 167 72
552.16 694.12
1,705.53 3,769.53
757.50 -
235.60 1,959.60
303.62 543.86
518.02 953.70
223.02 490.01
24.93 411.98
79.31 263.00
59.20 76.02
18.61 7113
21.61 2351
35.64 19.25
1919 22.29
(32.37) (83.99)
266,49 841.40
66.08 A3 77
29.64 51.07
4,337.61 9.476.08
53.10 53.10
354 354
3.49 319
3.95 3.89
66.08 63.72
(5,074.17) (887.21)
10,006 10,000
(50,741.65) (8,872.11)
86,000,000 86,000,000

shreiiy oftc  puted as the Company has incurred a loss during the year due to which the Optionally convertible non -cumulative redeemable preference




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 30
Financial instroments — Fair values aod risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values
Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial linbilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below-

as at 31 March 2021

Carrying amount Fair valoe
Financisf Financial Financial Total Level I - Level 2 - Level 3- Total
instroments instruments  instruments Quoted price  Significant Significant
ed at ed at ed at in active  observable inputs  unobservable
FYTPL FVTOCI  amortized cost markets inputs

Fi ial assets not ed at fair value
Trade receivables - - 1,179.21 L179.21 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3,783.97 3,783,97 - - - -
Other bank balances - - 4639 46.39 - - - -
Loans

= Non-current - - 426.92 416,92 - - - -
- Current 4,043.60 - 2,040.69 6,084.29 - - - -
Other financial assets
~ Non-current - - 131.14 181.14 - - - -
- Current 99,51 - 318,67 418.17 99.51 - - 98.51
4,143,11 - 7,976.97 12,120.07 99.51 - - 49,51

Financial labilities viot measured at Fair valire
Borrowings - - 150.60 150,00 - - - -
Bank Overdraft - - 2.257.34 2,257.34 - - - -
Trade payables 5 5 12,921.15 12,921.15 5 S 5 e
Other financial habilities

- Non current - - 821.13 821.13 - - - -

- Current - - 436.06 436.06 - - - -
Total financial lishilities - = 16,585.69 16,585.69 - - - -
as at 31 March 2020 Carryving amount Fair value

Financial Financial Financial Total Level ] - Lavel 2 - Level 3 - Total
instrements  instr instr s Quoted price  Significant Significant
d at d at ed at in active observableinputs unobservable
FVTPL FVTOCT  amortized cost markets inpats

Financial assets measured at fair vakue

Investment in mutual funds 4,108.35 - - 4,108 35 4,108 35 - - 4,108.35
4,108.35 - - 4,108.35 4,108 35 - - 4,108 35

Financial assets aot measured atl fair value

Trade receivables - - 5,662.54 5,662.54 - - - -

Cath and cash equuvalents - - 2,617.85 261785 - - -

Other bank balances - - 43.30 43 30 - - - -
Loans
- Non-current - - L0116 Lolrie - - - =
- Curremt - - 2,64198 2,641 98 - - - -
Other financial assets
= Non-current - - i71.56 171.56 - - - -
- Current - - 2,180.54 2,180.54 - - - -
0 - 14,328 94 14,328 94 - - N N

Financial liabilities oot measured at fair value
Borrowings - - 900.00 900.00 - 900.00 - 900.00
Bank Overdraft - - 2,673 26 2,673.26 - - - -
Trade payables - - 14,058.07 14,058.07 - - - -
Other financial liabilities
- Non current B - 2,741.93 2,741.93 - - - -

- Current - - 967.14 $67.14 - e - -
Total financial liabilitics - -~ 21,340.40 21,340.41 - $00.00 - 500.00

The company has net disclosed the fair value of financials instrument such as trade receivables . trade payables, etc. because their carrying are ar ble approximation of fair
valug
Level | ludes fi | measired using quoted prices.

48l mstruments that are nol traded in an active market is determined using valuali h which 1he use of observable market data and rely as

cstimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is mcluded in level 2,
gyificant inputs 15 ot based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent
asset included 1n level 3.

pstern APIES
bl Goregach (Easth.
Mumbai . 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwase stated)

Note 30 (Continued)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Conrinued)
B. Measurement of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant znobservable inputs
The following tables show the valuation techmiques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 farr values, as well as the sigmficant unobservable nputs used.

Finsacial instroments ed at fzir valpe

inter-relationship between
significant unobservable inputs
and faiv value measurement

Significant

Type Valuation techniqoes anobservable inputs

Forward contracts for foreign exchange contracts The forergn exchange forward Not applicable Not applicable
fcontracts are marked to market
using forward FEDAI rates
penaimng fo the date of matunty
of the contract at the Balance
shest date

Mutual funds Market companson techmque- Not appheable Not applicable
The valuation model 1s based on
market multiples derived from
quoted prices of mutual fund
securities.

Bomrowings Discount rate to fair value of Not applicable Not applicable
financials assets and liabilities at
amortised cost is based on
E:neral lending rate.

Transfers between Levels
There were no transfers in either direction 1n any of the reporting penods

C. Financial visk management
The Company has exposure 10 the following risks arising from financal instruments.

= Credit risk ;
= Liquidity risk ; and
= Market risk

i, Risk management framework

The Company's Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's nisk management framework The Board of directors has established the
Risk M. C ittee, which is responsible for developing and g the Company’s nsk management policies. The Comemittee repons regularly to the Board of directors on ils

activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to wenify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 10 s¢t appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor nsks and
adherence 10 limits. Risk policies and are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activinies. The Company, through its rmmng
and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment m which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how A it i compli with the pany’s risk g policies and procedures, and reviews the adeq of the sk g
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Commitice is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undenakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of
nsk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audil commitice.

it. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Company if a oF c pary to a fi | instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company’s receivables from customers and investmenta in debt securities, Credit risk primarily arises from financial assets such as trade receivables, lnvastment in mutual funds, denvanve
fir fs instr . bal with banks and other receivables.

Credit risk arising from investment 10 mutual funds , denvative financials instruments and balance with banks s limited because the counterparties are bank and recogmised financials
institution with high ¢redit ratings.

The Company's exposure to credit nsk 1s influenced manty by the individual ch istics of each However, I also ¢ ders the factors that may influence the credit
nisk of its customer base, including the default risk of the indusiry and country 1n which customers operate

The C. blishes an all e for i that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables,

The average credit period on sales of services is less than 30 days Credit nisk ansing from trade receivables 1s managed in accordance wath the Company’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit nisk 19 . The ¢ ton of eredit risk in limited due to the fact that the customer base 18 large

The Company establishes an allownnee for impairment that represents ils estimate of expected losses i respect of rade and other recervables
31 March 2021 3] March 2020

\cndil loss allowance on trade receivables
of the year 734.95 99422

& ddingpriomsth  iody
C" ‘;l_q‘lasﬂlflé ne\f‘
wpepebeiehdof
Expless Highway.
gaon (Easth,
Ajumbai - 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 (Continued)
Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management (continued )
iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty n meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its labilities when they are due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generaled from operations. The company believes that the working caphtal is
sufficient to meet its current requirements, accordingly no tiquidity risk is perceived,

Finaneing arrangements 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Particulars

Floating rate - Term loan / WCDL 150,00 900.00
150.00 900,00

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following arc the remaining contractual maRrities of financial liabitities at the reporting date The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest

payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements,

&s at 31 March 2021 Contractusal cash flows
Carrying Total 0 to 180 days 150 to 360 Tyrio 3 yrs. more than 3 yrs.
amount days
Non-derivative financial lisbilities
Borcowings 150,60 150.00 150,00
Trade payables 12,922.00 12,922.00 5.962.69 6,959.30 - -
Other financial liabilities 1,407,19 1,407.19 268.20 317.86 821.13 -
14,479.19 14,479.19 6,380.89 7.277.17 821.13 -
as at 31 March 2020 Contractual cash flows
Carrying amount Total 0 to 180 days 18010 360 Iyrio 3 yrs. more than 3 yrs,
days
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bomrowings 900,00 S900.00 900,00 - - -
Trade payables 14,058.07 14,058.07 14,058.07 - - -
Other financial liabitities 967.14 957.14 352.93 577.93 36.28 -
1592521 15,925.21 15,311.00 577.93 36.28 -
iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices  will affect the Company's income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable (o all market risk sensitive fi ial § inchuding foreign currency receivables and payables. We are

expased to market risk primarily related to forcign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of our investinents. Thus, our exposure to market risk is n funciron
of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activitics in foreign currency. The objective of market rigk management is to avoid excessive
exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its payables to foreign vendors in various forcign currency. The functional currency of the Company 15 Indian Rupee
However the Company has natural hedge, the collection from its customer is in equivalent INR which converts in vanous required currency and park it in SPFC (Special
Purposc Foreign Cumrency ) account and release the payment to its vendor as and when payable.

There is also a cross camrency exposure (collection in one foreign currency and payment in another forcign, currency). Tour prices are quoted in USD against which paymenis
are quoted in EUR. This cross curtency foreign exchange risk is for the FX component of European Tours till the same is settled with the supplier. There are also cases where
tour prices are quoted in EUR and the payments are in local currencies of Europe, mainly GBP and CHF. This leads to EUR/GBP and EUR/CHF exposures. The payment
obligations arc thus exposed to the risk of the EUR appreciating against USD, and risk of GBP and CHF appreciating against the EUR.

Risk starts on the day of tour launch, when price is fixed in foreign currency. Tour price is coliected around 15 days/ 1 month in advance and kept in SPFC account to meet
payment obligations to Foreign Service providers.

Mit
y Sgxperience, 50% of cross currency exposures are initially hedged using plain vanilla , forward exchange contracts, with time frame as per credit period
Grotp-thie supplier. ’cha ity of the contracts ,arc ail less than one yesr. The hedge price should always be lower than the ROE of the exposure that is initially fixed. On a

e ight) 8 the are revised based on current sales report and hedges are entered into in & phased manner. Once actual bookings start and sales targets are being
frpasury hedg i he bal open exposurcs, hedying more than 90% of total exposures. The Company hedges total 100% exposure of Inter-Company loans using
lzinpéafiitta £¢ |contracts.

westgn B B,
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Sorthe year ended 31 March 202}
{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 (Continued)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)

Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in different currencies converted to functional currency }

The currency profile of financial assets and financial fiabilities as at 31 March 2021 15 as below:

ay 2t 31 March 2021

Amount in INR

Ush EUR GBP Others
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,113.37 683.73 16.69 556.57
Trade and other receivables including advances 441.54 124.61 152 17532
1,554.91 808.34 18.21 731.89
e
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,161.91 911.04 19.07 310,08
1,161.91 911.04 19.07 310.08
Exchange Rates 73.52 86.09 100,95
Net Exposure in Respective cur 393.00 (102,70) ©.57) 421,31
as at 31 March 2020 Amount in INR
UsD EUR GBP Others
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,059.40 632.05 15.72 717255
Trade and other receivables mcluding advances 1,537.51 659.60 774 533.31
2,5969] 1,261.65 23.46 1,305.86
Financial labilities
Trade and other payables 2,025.09 L,300.66 204] 805.47
2,025.09 1,300.66 2941 805.47
Exchange rate 7542 83.16 93.05
Net Exposure in Respective currencies 571.82 (9.01) (5.95) 500.39
The following sigmificant exchange rates have been applicd dunng the year.
Average rate Year-end spot rate
iNR 31 March 2024 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
USD 74,47 T2.22 T3.52 75.67
EUR B4.63 8035 B86.09 82.77
GEP 97.00 91.65 100.95 91,50
Sengitivity analysis
Ar bly possible strengthening (weakeming) of the Indian Rupee agamst various currencics as mentioned 2bove at March 31 2021 and March 31 2020 would have

affected the measurement of financiat

ive currencies and affected profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis

assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, reman constant and igniores any 1mpact of forecast transactions to be held in the foreign cwrrencies.

Amount in INR

March 31, 2021
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakeaing
1% movement
USD 398 3.98) s -
EUR (R 1.01 .
GBP 0.01) 0.01 5 5
March 31, 2020 Amount in INR
Profit or Loss Equity (net of tax)
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakene
(4t Froof. 5.48 {548) - -
R 1 g, Towes & (©.09) 009 - -
(0.06) 0.06 - .

co Centet,
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 (Continued)

Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows;

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Variable rate of borrowings 8.55% 8.00%
As at the end of the reporting peried, the company had the following variable rate borrowings:
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance % of total loans Balance % of 101al loans
Variable rate of borrowings 150,00 100 900.00 17
Net exposure 1o cash flow due to interest rate risk 150.00 160 $00.00 17

Sensitivity

Profit or Loss is sensitive 1o higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in nterest rates.
Changes in interest rate are based on historical movement

[nterest rates - increase by 100 basis peints *
Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points *

* Holding ali ather vaniables constant

Note 31

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Contingens liabilities

Claims againsi the Company not acknowledged as debts

a. Digputed claims made by clicnts

b. Disputed Service Tax Demands

c. Provident Fund Liability on account of pending Supreme court judgment.

Impact on profit after tax

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
0.98) {5.86)
.98 5.86

31 March 2021 3] March 2020
1,076.31 1,354.29
4,679.51 4,794.75

35.73 35.73

(a) It is not practicable for the company to estimate the timing of cash flows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective proceedings,
{b) The company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

(<) The Hon"ble Supreme Court of India ("SC") by their order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should
be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of provident fund contribution, Subsequently, & review petition against this decision has been
fi ted and is pending before the SC for disposal. Management has accounted for the liability for the period from date of the SC order to March 31, 2015. Further,

pen ~ ecision on the subject review petition and directions from the EPFO, the impact for the past period, if any, is not ascertainable and consequently no eff cct has

cn( accounts.
< {0
Q)@ ﬂmixn:‘:? ) {to th extent not provided for)

Wing. 0

g to be ¢

d on capital account and not provided for net of advances
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31 March 2021  3i March 2020
46.59 108.10




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued}
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 32
Transfer priciag

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Sections 92-
92F of the Income-tax Act. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation 10 be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of
updating the documentation for the international as well as specified domestic transactions (if applicable) entered into with the associated enterprise during the
finanicial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by the end of the stipulated timeline, as required by faw. The Management is of the opinion that its
international as well as specified domestic transactions if any) are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will nol have any impact on the financial statements,
particularly on the amount of 1ax expenses and that of provision for taxation,

Note 33
Micro and Small Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force from 2 October, 2006, certain disclosures are required 1o be made
relating to dues to Micro and Smail Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, there are no parties registered as micro

and small emerprises,

Particatars 31 March 2021 31 2020
The amounis remaining unpaid 1o Micro and Small Suppliers as at the end of the year,

- Principal - -
== Interest 0.84 -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act, 2006} along with the amount of the payment made 1o the supplier - -
beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year.

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each 2832

accounting year. : B
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified vnder MSMED Act, 2006. N B
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

E.Y, 2020-2021 0.84 -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, uniil such date when the
interest dues as above are actvally paid to the small emterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 0.84 -
expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006,

Note 34
Scgment reporting

The Company is in the business of providing travel and reiated services to its retail and corporate customers which is considered by the chief” operating decision maker
(‘CODM') as the only reportable busi ginent taking into account the nature of the business, the risk and retums, the organisation structure and internal reporting
. mpany also provides financial services which is not a materia! reportable segment and is largely considered to be an integral part of trave! and related
-~ related services includes tour operations and travel management services, arranging air tickets, hotels, sightseeing, visa and other related

des services within similar economic environments considering the origin of services and risks and rewards being similar across the said
© no separate reportable geographical segments. Accordingly, these financial statements are reflective of the information required by the




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount 1n Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35
Capital Management
The C ders the foll 7 of 1ts Balance Sheet 10 be managed capntal

i}
Total equity  retained eamings, capntal reserves, share capital

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard 1ts ability (o continue as a going concer and (o optimise retums to our sharcholders. The capital structure of the Company 1s
based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key ¢lements 1n order 1o meet its sirategic and day-to~day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to
nisk and manage the capital structure in tight of changes in d and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets,

The Company aims to translate profitable growth 1o supenior cash generation through efficient capital management. The Company's policy is 1o maintain a stable and strong capiial
structure wth a focus on total equity so as to mantair investor, ereditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of 1ts business. The Compary's focus 1
on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, secunity, as well as a bigh financial flexibility for potential finure borowings, +f required, without impacting the nsk
profile of the Company. The Company will take appropriate steps 1 order 10 mamtain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The Company 15 not subject to financial covenants
m any of its significant financing agreements.

holders. The Company’s goal is to continue 1o be able 1o retum excess hquidity 10

The management monilors the retum on capital as well as the level of dividends fo sh
sharehalders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.

Note 36
Employee benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India,

(1) Defined coniribution plans:
The Company makes comtnibutions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employecs towards Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance
Corporation, Labour Welfere Fund and National Pension Scheme which are defined contribution plan. The Company has no obliganons other than 1o make the specified

L . The ¢ b are charged to the Statement of profit and loss as they accrue.
Amount contributed to defined t plan and recognised as an exp inthe S of Profit and Loss are as under
Particulars 31 March 2021 I M 2020
Employer’s contribution to provident fund 21230 344.13
Employee's State Insurance Corporation 10.60 667
National pension scheme 5.82 14.29
Labour welfare fund 035 0.58
(ii) Defimed benefit plan:
Gratuity plan
The Company provides for Gratuity using the projected unil credit method, with | val bewny carred out at each balance sheet date, based on tegislations as enacted upto

the balance sheet date, Actuarial gains and losses are recogmised in full an the Staternent of Profit and Loss m the penod in which they occur. Past service cost is recogmised
immediately 10 the extent that the benefits are already vested.

Gratuity is payable to all elygible employees of the Company on super 1, death and permanent disablement. in terms of the pravisions of the Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972 or
as per the Compary s scheme, which 15 more beneficial

Com pensated ahsences and leave encashment
As per the leave policy, every employee will be atlotied 30 days of leave 1n the first week of January No leaves can be camed forward 16 the next year whereby, the leave balance left

unutilized on 31 December shall lapse Duning the year, a sum aggregating 10 Rs 55 22 (previous year Rs. -94.80) has been debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Based on the actuanal vaiuation obtaned m this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements
as at Balance Sheet date

31, March 2021 3 M; Q

Gratuity

Defined benefit asset-Gratuity plan 12045 27795
Defined benefit lisbility 494,06 637 55
Net defined benefit liability 373.61 359.60
LCm:: ka ll%llceﬂﬁ (

@v pen 55.22 -

1Ath Fleot
fod playpetepantfiabi o 42883 359.60




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statemeats (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount 1n Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 (Continued)
Employee benefits {Continued)

Moavement in net defined benefit (asset) Nubility
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benofit {asset) hability and s components

Defined benelit obligation Fair value of plan assels Net defined benefit
(asset) liability

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening balance as on 1 Apnl 2020 637.55 626,52 277.95 3i8.72 359.60 307.80
Current service cost 52.9¢ 90.53 - - 52.9%0 90.53
Adjustiment to opening far value of plan assets - - - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - - - - -
Past service cost - - - - - -
Irnerest cost (income) 34,67 40.76 13.97 19.61 20.70 21,15
Scitlements  benefits pard - - - - - -
B7.57 131 2% 13,97 19.61 73.60 111.68
Included in OC
Remeasurement loss (gain) - - - - - -
Actuanal loss (gain) (38.20) (31.87) - - (38.20) (31.87)
- - 2L41 16.83 {21.41) {16.83)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income
(33.20) {31.87) 21.41 16.83 (59.59) (48.71)
Other
Contributions pad by the employer - - - iz - (r1m
Benefits pard {192.86) (88.39) (192.36) (88.39) - -
Closing balance as on 31 March 2021 494,06 637 55 120,45 27795 373,61 359.60
Represented by
Defined benefit asset 12045 27795
Defined benefit liability 494,06 637 55
Net defined benefit hability 373.61 35960
The major categories of plans assets for gratoity are as follows
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Quoted Unquoted Total Guoted Unquoted Total
Insurer Managed Funds 120.45 - 12045 27794 - 27794
Defined benefit abligations
i. Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuanal assumptions at the reporting date (exp d as weighted
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate 5.55% 583%
Salary escalation rate 6% 6%
Monality rate IALM (2012-14) 1ALM (2012-14) Ul
Employee Attntion Rate
Upto Age 30 30.00% 29.00%
Age 3140 22,00% 23.00%
Age 41-50 20.00% 15.00%
11.00% 10.00%
% Co.
C.OQA 0] : ture mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tabies. The current longevities underlying the values of the defined benefit obligation at
Fag) € date llows
Wing. Towel 4.

ral
Cegl A3 B4R 2021 the °  ted average duration of (he defived benefit obligation was 4.77 years (31 March 2020 4 57 years)

hway.
Expless Hig
me sy

MDA - 400 063

*




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continned)
Jor the year ended 31 March 202}

(All amount sn Rs Lukhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 36 (Continoed)
Employse benefits (Continoed)

ii. Sensitivity analysis

B,

ible ch a1 the reporting date (o one of the refevant actuanal assumptions, holding other assumpticns cortstant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation

hiv
oly p 1

by the amouns shown below.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (2021 - 1% and 2020 :- 1% movement) {11.54) 12.05 (30.11) 3254
Future salacy growth (2021 - 1% and 2020 - 1% movement) 1154 {11.17) 27.46 (26.34)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions

shown.
The foliowing table shows expense recognised in Profit and Loss account and

31 March 2021 3 March 2020

Currenl service cost 52.90 90.53
Past service cost - 5
Interest income, net 20.70 21.15
73.60 i11.68
The following table shows remeasurement recogmised in Other Comprehensive Income
arch 31 March 2020
Actuanal loss (gain) floss on deferred benefit obligation (38.20) {31.87)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (21.41) {16.83)
(59.61) {48.71)

Risk Exposure for gratuity
Through 115 defined benefit plans, the company 1s exposed to a number of risks, the most sigmficant of which are detailed below :

#)  Asset volatility: The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rale set with reference to bond yrelds, of the plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit
Further any decrease in the bond yields will increase the plan liabilities. The plan assets investments are 1n unquoted securities which are subject 1o interest rate nisks and the fund

manages the interest rate risks to an acceptable low level

b} Salary growth & Demographic assumptions. The plan is of a final salary defined benefit 1n nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the nsks
pertuming to the plan. In particular, there is a risk for the company that any adverse salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can
result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits 1o employees in future, Since the benefits are lemp sum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity risks,

Note 37
Share-based payment arrangemeats:

A. Description of share-based payment arrangements

i. Share option programs (equity-settied)
Thomas Cock (India) Limited, the parent company has granted employee stock options to the Company's employees on the dates mentioned below. Under these plan, the holder of the

vested options are entitled to purchase the shares of the holding company at exercise price as mentioned below

The key terms and conditions related to the grants under these plans are as follows;
Method of
Plan Settlement Grant date No. of options Exercise price Vesting period
GTOTNOV2016 Equity 7 November 2.25 Rs. [ 100% of the options
2016 vest at the end of the
4 yearsi.e.
T-Nov-2020
ESOP 2018-MGMT Equity 13 June 2018 213 Rs. 13793 100% of the options
vest at the ¢nd of the
Jyearsic
t3-June -2021
ESOP 2018-EXECOM Equity 5 October 2018 0.40 Rs. t 100% of the ophions
vest at the end of the
Sycarsi.e
5-0ct-2023

Share options autstanding at the end of the year have the feltowing expiry date and exercise prices

March 31,2021 March 31,2020

Grant Dufe Expiry date/ Expiry Year Exercise price {Rs.) Share options Share options
7T November 2016 1 November 2040 1 2.25 2.25
10 June 2031 13793 213 422
20 Septemnber 2043 1 0.40 0.97
478 7.44
aiding contraciaal life of opti ding at end of year 15.66 Years 15.65 Years|

gaon (Easl),
ai - 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continved)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amount 1p Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 37 (Continued)
Share-based payment arrangentents: (Continved)

B. Measurement of fair values

Equity-settied share-based payment arrangements.

The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes formula. The Black- Scholes model requires the consideration of certain variables such as
valatility, nisk free rate, expected dividend yield, etc. for the caleulation of the fair value of the option These vanables significantly influence the far value and any changes in these
varisbles could significantty affect the far value of the option.

Thomas Cook (India) Limited, the holding company ("TCIL") in a composile scheme of ammangement demerged its Human Resources Services Business and transferred it to Quess
Corp Limited ("Quess"). The scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT} with the appomted date as April 1, 2019. The effective date of the scheme was
Nevember 25, 2019 when both TCIL and Quess filed the centified copies of the order with therr respective Junsdictional Registrar of Companies.

As g part of the posite scheme, Employoes whose ESOPs were outstanding on the effective date will be entitled to the additiona! shares of Quess on account of the demerger of
Human R Busi; [nstead of altening the exercise price, TCIL provided additional award tn form of Quess shares
The employees are now entitled 10 shares of Quess along wilh those of TCIL in the same share i raho p bed 1n the sct for the other shareholders of TCIL.

In case of vested ESOPs, the employees wilt be granied shares of TCIL and Quess only on payment of the excrcise pnce In case of unvested ESOPs, the employees will be granted
shares of TCIL and Quess on completion of the remaiming vesting persod and payment of the exercise price

The options, to the extent, which are settied by shares of Quess do not meet the definttion of a share-based payment arrangenent because the value of shares of Quess is not based on
the price or value of TCIL's equity instruments or any of its group entity's equity instruments,

The optrons 1o the extent which are settled by shares of Quess will be considered as an employee benefit withun the scope of Ind AS 19.

The options settled by shares of TCIL. continue te be considered a3 share based payments and are accounted as per IND AS 102,

Key manuagement personnel {March 2021) Key management personnel {March 2020)
ESOP 2018- ESOQP 1013- ESOP 20i8- ESOP 2018-
GTOTNOV2016 MGMT EXECOM GTOINQV 2016 MGMT EXECOM
Fair value (Esop Expenses) 117,75 83.65 155.80 11775 8365 155.80
Fair value {Stock Expenses) 95.29 65,71 95.21 95.29 6571 95.21
Number of options 225 213 0.40 225 422 0.97
Share price at grant date 218.55 248.63 25620 21855 248.63 256.20
Exerctse price 1.00 137.93 1.00 1.00 13793 1.00

CR iliation ef ding share opti
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share option programs were as follows

Particulars Number of Weighted average Number of ~ Weighted average

aptions exercise price options EXEICise price

31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2020

Options ding a3 at the beginning of the year 7.44 78.64 744 78.64
Options granted duning the year - . . -
Options lapsed/ forferted during the year 2.66 110,46 - -

Options outstanding as at the year end 4.78 €0.91 T4 7863
Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

D Exp /shares option g arising from share based payment transactions
ansing from share-based payment related transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows
Co.

<( 3 h 202 rch 2020

0 90,89 24905

68.38 44.32

westem £ f
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asar 31 March 2024
{Allamount n Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 38
Related party transactions
(A) Names of related parties by whom control exists

Name of the parties Relationships
Fairfax Financisl Holdings Lindted, Canada Ukimate Holding Company
Thomas Cook (India) Limited Holding Comparny

(B) Parties over whom control exists
Relationships Name of the parfies

Subsidiary Company of SOTC Travel Limited Travel Circle Intemutional (Mauntivs) Limited {Hobding 51% of toezk Equity, w.e.F 27 June 2017}

(C) Fellow Subsidiaries with whom ions has taken place during the year
Relatioaships Name of the parties
Fellow subsidianes TC Visa Services (India} Limited

Travet Corporation {india) Limited (Amalgamated w.¢.f 25th November, 2019)
TC1-Go Vacation India Pvi Ltd

Allied Tpro {w.e.f 2%th Juae 2017)

Luxe Asiz Private Limited

Sterling Hofiday Resorts Limited

Quess Corp Limited (upto 31 March 201%)

Asian Trails SDN BHD (Malaysia)

Asian Trails Ltd. (Thailand)

PT Asian Trails Lid

Asign Traits (Vietnam) Co. Lid

Kuoni Private Safans (Pry) Lid

Private Safanis EA Ltd

TC Tours Limited (formerly known as ‘Thomas Cook Tours Limited)
Thomsas Cook Toeurs Limited

Australia Tours Management Pry Lid.

DEI Holdings Lid

Thomas Caok {Mauritius) Holidays Linuted

Horizon Travel Services LLC

Desert Adventures Tourism LLC

Co-Achieve Solutions Private Limuted { upto 31 March 2019)
Trawel Cirle International Ltd Hongkong

Asian Trails Holding Ltd.

Kuoni Australia Holding Pry Ltd

Thomas Cook {Mauritius) Operations Co Lid

TC Travel Services Limited

Fairfx India Charitable Foundation
Travel Corporation (India) Limited {formerly known as SOTC Travel Manag: Linuted)
(D) Key Mansgemeat Perssnel / Directors and Management Council
Particalars Name of the key management personned
Managing Directer Mr. Vishal Sun
Directers of the Company Mr. Madhavan Menon
Mr. Nifesh Vikamsey
Mrs Kishori Udeshi
Mr. Rahul Bhagat
Mr, Debasis Nandy
Chiel Financial Officer Mr. Farroukh Kolsh
Company Secretary Ms Kiran Agarwal {upto 20 May 2020)

Mr Chirag Viya (from 29th May 2020 to 9th Nov 2020)
Mr Pravesh Palod (w.e.f 25th Jan 2021}

Council Mr Vishal Sun
% Co. L Mr Famoukh Kolah
A Mr Indiver Rastog
fioot. Mr § D Nandakumar
@ “\mm Tower 4, Mr Damel Dsouza
nieat ) Ms. Deepti Sheth

AR
Neseo G0y

weste! £asih.
200 |
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 3§ March 2024
(All amount i Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ry

Related party i ions {C:

{E} Related parties with whom transactions has faken place during the year

Particulars
inceme fram tonrs

Cost of tours & reiated services
Guarantee foes paid

Expesses reimbursed

Expenses recoversd
Incentive paid { Netted off from Revenne)
Productivity linked bonus income

Loan Receivable

Term loan given during the year

Term Joaa given (repaid) during the year

Interest income oa leng term loan

Year

2021
2020
2021
2020

2621
2020

2021
2020

021
2020
202t
2020
2021
2020
w02t
2020

2021
2020

2021
2020

2021
2020

021
020

021
2020

2021
2020

17956
007

340,65
3.412.05

{0.03
1522

1,162.68
1.865.84
7918
119.67

4,200.00

4,£50.3%
55039
99.63
128.66

4781
88.64

561.83
85883




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Luxe Asia Private Limited

ay at 3{ March 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, wmiess otherwise stated)
Related party tr ions (Continued}
(F) Names of parties (subsidiaries and feilow subsidiaries) having related party transactions in excess of 10% in lioe transactions:
Particulary Fellgw subsidinrics 31 March 2021 31-Mer:20
TC1 GO Vacation {38.99) -
TC Tours Limited {72.00) 93004
In¢ome from tours Travel Corporation (India) Limited (37.45) 633.88
TC Tours Limited 737.14 51195
Horizoa Travel Services LLC 744 2,387.83
Desert Adventures Tourism LLC 32280 517.88
TC Visa Services (India) Limited 53.42 -
Luxe Asia - 250.74
Quess Corp Lid. - 343.84
Asian Trails (Malaysia} - 9334
Cost af tonrs and reinted services * Asizn Traits (Thasand) - 314.50
PT Asian Trails Ltd [ATI) - 19.13
Asian Trails (Viemam) Co. Ltd [ATV] - 1.33
Kuoni Private Safaris (Pty) Ltd - 253.66
Private Safaris EA Ltd - 155,66
Australia Tours Management Pry Lid. - 202.02
Coachieve Solutions Private Limited - 19.87
Thomas Cook (Mauntius) Holidays Limited - 2053
Expenses reimbarsed Travel Corporation (India) Limited 453 71.23
Horizon Travel Services LLC - 83.85
Luxe Asia 0.58 -
Travel Corporation (India) Limited 1540 3696
Hornizon Travel Services LLC 122 086
Diesert Adventures Tourism LLC 22 0.86
Private Safaris EA Lid 082 0.86
Kuoni Private Safaris (Pty) Lid 032 086
Travel Circle International Ltd Hongkong pA L] 171
Expenses recovered DEl Holdings Lid 099 3%
Asian Trails Holding Ltd. 374 137
Kuoni Australia Holding Pty Ltd 093 034
“Thomas Cook (Mauritivs} Operatiens Co Ltd 1482 L7
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Limited 435 -
Luxe Asia 139 -
TC Travel Services Limited - 1K 2
Incentive paid { Netted off from Reveome) TC Tours Limited - 265.04
Prodoctivity Enked bonus TC Tours Limited £9.20 1532
Shert terey lean Travel Circle International {(Mauritius) Limited 4,043,60 .
Interest income on term loan Travel Circle Intemational {Mauritius) Limited WM 10121
Travel Corporation {India) Limiled 61.61 237.00
TC1 GO Vacation 1837 41.83
Hiou Travet Setvices LLC 1.65 9.08
Desert Adventures Tourism LLC 031 0.6¢
Kuoni Privaic Safaris (Pry) Ltd 1.25 043
Luxe Asia 139 -
Private Safaris EA Lid LO4 0.21
Receivables DEI Holdings Ltd 0.25 39
Asizn Trails Holding Ltd. 4.08 0.34
Kuoni Australia Holding Piy Lid 085 0.7
TC Tours Limited 149.34 LIST.04
Thomas Cook (Mauritius} Holidays Limited 316 -
Thomas Cook {Mauritius) Operations Co Lid 3.09 0.43
Travet Circte Intemancnal Lid Hongkong 0.55 -
“Fravel Corporation (India) Limited 82 420
Sterling Holtday Resoris Ltd 1.09 143
Asian Trails (Thailand) 041 5467
Honzon Trave! Services LLC 4.55 1834
Desert Adventures Tounsm LLC 37.37 103.24
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Limited 631 6.94
Payables TC Tours Limsted 1,515.33 1,239.05
TC Visa Services (India) Limited 46.12 -
Quess Corp Lid - 17.69
Asian Trails (Malaystz) - 3387
Coachieve Solutions Private Limited - 0.76
Australia Tours Management Pty Ltd. - 13.03
Kuoni Private Safarig (Pty) Lid - 2]
Private Safaris EA Lid - 0.39
PT Asien Trails Ltd - 5.85
57.09 17.80




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financizl statements (Continued)}

arar 31 Ak 201

(AR smownt s Rs Lakdes, walert otveraiss seaed)

(G) Rckatod purtics with Huldimg wwd (Rsimmtc Holding Campany

[Particntars Halding 3od (Btimare: Holdwp Coavirrary 3 March 2621 31 March 2020 |
Incoane from towrs Thonsas Cook (budia) Lrmised 5s 007
Cast of tours 20d rebxied strvices Thomas Cook (India) Linited 3H0E5 341208
Espenses reisbaried Thomas Cook {Iadia) Lumied 116248 186584
Exprmses recovered Thomzs Cook (Eads) Laxited I 12967
Guaranter Fees paid Thomzs Cook {Indix) Lamited {0.an 152
Laza Receivabie Thomas Cook (Indiz) Lensited LiR» i.[007
Teros lass given during the yesr Thomas Cool {Iadia} Lingsed 420000 -
Term lnan repaid during the year Thomazs Cook (Endiz) Lested 41509 3505%
Battrisd vcome ow borm bean Thoaxs Cook {india) Limised 43 2635
Receivabley Thomas Cook (Indez} Lamted 10 =123
Payahies Thomas Cook (Indea) Limted 56158 23533
)T with Key Alsaap 2
[Particytary 3t March 2821 31 Morch 2020 |
Salaries and other employer beacfirs o whale-tme & 4 officers.
Mir Vishal Sun 11355 206.75
Mr Faroukh Kolah 3655 3632
Ads Kirm Agarwal (opso 20¢) May 2020} 109 2171
Mr Cherag Vaga (froas 29tk May 2000 o Seby Nov 2020) 169 .
Mr Pravesh Palod (we {25t Jan 2021) oy -
Mr § B Nandakreror [ 7 v 104.76
M Dawel Dsgoza 5354 9580
IkDean s 4033
Conwrivoion and othey benefits 1 - .
Gﬂzsmhhmsﬁﬂmw
Nete 3
Oxher sformateon weth segards other masers sp m scheodole M of the G Act 2013 15 either il ar sot appieable 1 the For the F ) year emcled 31
March 2021
Nate 90

Thorexs Coole (Pndis} Limsted, the

holding:
consolidried Ensncel statemet der fod AS 110,

The notes Grom | & 40 form an miegral part of the Gamcia staements.
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